ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 30, 2003
8:00 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Corrections

Marc Antrim - Juneau

- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

MARC ANTRI M Conmi ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner - Juneau

Department of Corrections

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointed conm ssioner of the
Depart ment of Corrections.

REPRESENTATI VE MARY KAPSNER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the confirmation hearing
for Conm ssioner Marc Antrim

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 30, 2003



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-02, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Seaton, Dahlstrom Lynn, Berkowi tz, Guenberg, and Wuyhrauch
were present at the call to order.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Corrections

Number 0017

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH announced that the commttee would consider the
confirmation of Marc Antrim Comm ssi oner, Department  of
Corrections, and he explained the process of a confirmation
heari ng.

Number 0100

MARC ANTRIM Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner - Juneau,
Departnent of Corrections, noted that the House State Affairs
Standing Conmittee had received his resune [included in the
commttee packet]. He conveyed the honor he felt at being
appoi nted by Governor Mirkowski, having begun [his career] "on
the floor as an officer."”

Nunber 0210

COM SSIONER  ANTRIM  noted that in [the Depart ment of
Corrections] wunique bonds are fornmed anong enployees; many of
the men and women who work in the correctional facilities work
week-on/ week-of f shifts - 12-hour days - and socialize as well
as work together. He said, "W're asked to do things for the
state in those capacities that nost people just don't have to
do." For exanple, he listed westling intoxicated people,
[rehabilitating] people who are suicidal, and [controlling or
restraining] aggressive people who suddenly "go crazy" in the
booki ng areas, after appearing calmin the patrol car. He told
the commttee that that type of work has been a character-
builder for those in it, including hinself. He spoke of the
attention to safety for the public, the prisoners, and the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 30, 2003



cowor kers. He characterized the people who work in this field
as being selfless.

COWM SSI ONER ANTRIM commented that the nen and wonmen who work
for [the Departnent of Corrections] like to say that it's the
toughest beat in the state, and he agrees. He said that he
hopes he can neet the goals and expectations of those nen and
wonen, as well as his own. He said that he thinks his
experience inside the departnment wll allow him to offer [the
| egi sl ature] "and other commttees” sone insights regarding how
to [make] difficult decisions "w thout seriously inpacting the
operations of the departnent.”

Number 0529

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM nenti oned a concern regardi ng insurance
billing and asked Conmm ssioner Antrimto address the issue.

COWMM SSI ONER ANTRI M responded that the issue is a concern, which
Jerry Burnett, the Director of Admnistrative Services, 1S
addr essi ng. He stated that he thinks a new admnistration
offers a new perspective. Gven that there are a nunber of
short-term prisoners who are gainfully enployed and do [incur]
injuries, he said, "I think this is sonmething that we can
certainly use to inpact our budget positively."

Number 0667

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked Comm ssioner Antrim for his comments
regarding a possible prison site in Wittier, Alaska [proposed
in 2002 during the Twenty- Second Al aska State Legislature, in HB
498] .

COW SSI ONER ANTRI M responded that [Governor Mirkowski] has nmade
it clear that he does not support private prisons "in concept,"”
which is basically the position of the [Departnment of
Corrections]. He nentioned a proposal that is "on the table,"”
and he said that he has not had adequate tinme to consider it;
therefore, he would not make any in-depth comrents regarding it.
Notw t hst andi ng that, he said that he would be ready to give an
honest assessnent of that project soon.

Nunber 0775

REPRESENTATI VE BERKONTZ asked if the admnistration wll
continue to oppose private prisons.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 30, 2003



COMM SSI ONER ANTRI M answered that he has not had any information

to the contrary. In response to a followup question from
Representative Berkowtz, he said that he thinks the
admnistration will be open to all proposals brought forward,

however, he reiterated that the governor's present position is
t hat he opposes [private prisons], as does the departnent.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKON TZ stated that he fully hopes that
[ Governor Murkowski] fulfills all his canpaign prom ses.

Number 0828

REPRESENTATI VE MARY KAPSNER, Alaska State Legislature, stated
her understanding that the [Departnent of Corrections] would be
reexam ning social prograns and asked Conm ssioner Antrim for
the definition of a social program

COM SSIONER ANTRIM replied that [the departnent] offers a
variety of treatnent prograns to help [rehabilitate] prisoners,

specific to [the problem that the prisoners face]. The
departnment intends to examne the effectiveness of those
progr ans. He nentioned seeing people repeatedly return to the

progranms, and he said that he would like to open discussion with
the various treatnment providers to come up with nore effective
[ prograns]. He nentioned sexual abuse and said that there are
sonme recidivismissues that need to be addressed.

COM SSIONER ANTRIM in response to a followup question from
Representative Kapsner, said that [the departnent] would begin
with a cost analysis and then observe how many people go through
[the prograns] versus how nany of those people return. He
mentioned M. Topou ([with the departnent], who would be
exam ning the progranms froma "phil osophi cal approach.”

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if the departnent intended to
conduct both a fiscal audit and program audit.

COWM SSI ONER ANTRI M answered that the departnment would attenpt
to "tie themin together”™ to get a cohesive picture. He said
"I understand what your concern is ... and | would like to put
that at ease.” He said that [the departnent] would not | ook at
a programthat's not working and automatically cut it. He added
that [the departnment] obviously needs to provide a |arge anount
of treatment in substance abuse. He reiterated that this was
not a matter of elimnating a program but rather of making it
better.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 30, 2003



Nunber 1286

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Conmi ssioner Antrim to clarify that
he was tal king about working for the nost effective treatnent
options, instead of [going back to] the "warehousing” nodel.

COM SSI ONER ANTRI M said that the warehousing approach has been
in the business as long as he has. He said he knows that 90
percent of [Alaska's] prisoners are "going to cone back out."
He stated that "doing nothing in the interinf would be a total
di sservice to the citizens of Al aska. Comm ssioner Antrim said

he is not going back to the warehousi ng nodel. He clarified
that [the departnment] has no intention of ending any existing
program but instead will make those [prograns] nore effective.
Nunmber 1360

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he found that many corrections
officers were concerned that sone of the actions initiated by
the legislature |last year regarding [anenities] were "directed
at the wong point." He stated his own concern that the system
should not wthhold anenities from the long-term prisoners,

whose rehabilitation mght be aided by having them but should
instead deny anenities to those in the early stages [of

incarceration] to inpress upon them that "this is sone place
they don't want to be.™ He asked Conm ssioner Antrim for his
views on that issue.

COM SSI ONER ANTRI M responded that a wide variety of anenities
are offered to prisoners, which he said is "all part of the
design." He described the booking area as very spartan and said
that the pre-trial area offers a little nore property. The
|l ong-term area, he said, is the place where prisoners are in
doubl e-bunk cells and are able to purchase televisions.
Comm ssioner Antrim noted that it is the long-term anenities to
whi ch Representative Seaton referred that "sonetines raise the
hackles on a nunber of |egislators' necks." The reason that
[the departnment] allows [prisoners] to provide anenities for
thensel ves is because those anenities serve as a nmanagenent
tool; it's a way to control negative behavior in a correctional
center.

COM SSI ONER ANTRIM commented that long-term prisoners |ike
things to be predictable and despise being around short-term
pri soners, because "their focus is so far off" that of the
short-term prisoners.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 30, 2003



Nunber 1687

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Comm ssioner Antrim to share his
general phil osophy regardi ng corrections.

Nunmber 1695

COWMWM SSI ONER ANTRI M answered that his general philosophy is to
treat [prisoners] fairly and firmy, rehabilitate them to the
best of |[the staff's] availability, and send them back out
better than they were when they cane in.

Number 1823

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked how |arge a problem honosexual rape
between prisoners is and what neasures "we'd be taking" to
protect prisoners from each other. He stated that he is in
strong favor of strong sentencing, but no prisoner should have
to suffer sexual abuse within the system

COW SSI ONER ANTRI M responded that the incidence of honpbsexua
rape in [the Al aska correctional] system is relatively |ow,
| argel y because of existing staffing patterns and the relatively

smal|l size of the facilities. Those incidents which do occur
are prosecuted to the fullest extent. He indicated that there
is ogreater risk "to our personal popul ation" in larger

facilities.
Nunmber 1936

COW SSI ONER ANTRI M in response to guesti ons from
Representative Berkowitz, said that he is famliar with the
Chaney criteria and concurs that it is adequate gui dance.

Nunber 1945

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ, at the request of Chair Wyhrauch,
noted that there are the five goals [of the Chaney criteria] and
listed the follow ng: isolation, prisoners' deterrence of
others, rehabilitation of the prisoner, and an expression of the
comunity.

Number 1980
REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER nentioned an article in the Anchorage

Chronicle prior to Deputy Conm ssioner Stalworthy's [current]
appoi nt nent . In that article, M. Stalwrthy reported that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 30, 2003



assaults were up 50 percent in Alaska's correctional system
She said that she has been "keeping a sharp eye" on corrections.
Representati ve Kapsner said that [Comm ssioner Margaret Pugh, in
office at the tinme the article was rel eased, approximately fal
2002] did not know the source of that report. Comm ssi oner
[ Pugh] had offered the following statistics to Representative
Kapsner, which she shared with the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee as follows: Nationally, there are 29.2 [assaults] per
1,000 assaults, and in Alaska there are 1.3 [per 1,000]. She
asked Comm ssioner Antrimto comment.

COWMM SSI ONER ANTRI M noted that "the deputy comm ssioner got that

statistic from information supplied by our departnment” in a
publ i cation Comm ssioner Antrim said he believed is called the
"Corrections Yearbook." He stated that he thinks the point

[that was] made [by reporting that statistic] is that even
though the statistics are very good, offenses in the state's
systemare "up."

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER stated that a 50 percent increase in [a
very |ow nunber of assaults] still equals [a |ow nunber]. She
stated her concern that the reports should show [Al aska's | ow
nunber of assaults].

COWM SSI ONER ANTRI'M noted that although there is a good record,
there have been a nunber of serious incidents. He said he is
charged to keep people safe while they serve their sentences.

Nunber 2148

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked Conmm ssioner Antrim if he 1is
concerned that budget cuts could have the inpact of increasing
danger to prisoners and guards.

COWM SSI ONER ANTRIM answered that a certain anount of staff is
necessary at each facility to adequately observe prisoners.
Those staffing points or "posts" are depended upon to nutually
support each other in the advent of an energency or sone type of
di sturbance in the facility. Any budget cut does translate into
staff reductions at those posts. WMany changes have been nmade in
staffing to adjust to various budget cuts that have been nade.
He opined, "I think we're teetering on the edge of sone
potential additional incidents.”

Nunber 2246

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 30, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that he had noticed that the food
service at the Spring Creek [Correctional Center] was quite
different from that which is seen on national television, where
a hall with up to two hundred people is depicted. At Spring
Creek, prisoners pick up their food in twos and return to their
cell to eat, thereby seemngly cutting down nuch of the "tension
interaction.” He asked if that nodel of food service delivery
is helpful and if it is [practiced] throughout the system

COMM SSI ONER ANTRI M answered that that system of delivering food
is not consistent throughout all the facilities. He naned three

facilities where large dining halls are used: t he Fairbanks,
Lenon Creek, and WIdwod Correctional Centers. In the newer
facilities, food service is actually brought to the Iliving

units, he said. He nentioned choices of cost-effectiveness that
are made, but said that the [food service nethod used in the
newer facilities] is much safer for the prisoners and the staff.

Nunmber 2382

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said, "During the state of the state
[ address], the governor indicated he was going to have a |arge
anti-crinme package." He stated that those crinme packages
usually translate to large fiscal notes for corrections. He
asked Commi ssioner Antrim if he had had a chance to peruse any
of those "proposals in the package,"” and he asked what kind of
fiscal note would be antici pated.

COMM SSI ONER ANTRI M answered that [the departnent] is currently

studying those fiscal notes. He said, "I can certainly
comuni cate to your office what those individual fiscal notes
are, and they will be attached, of course, to those aspects of
the bill."

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ rem nded commttee nenbers that if
there is a fiscal note, it has to be paid for, one way or
anot her.

Nunber 2447

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Conmissioner Antrim if he was
aware of Admnistrative Oder 207, which was published on the
23rd [of January, 2003], but was actually issued the day before.

COW SSI ONER ANTRI M said he had been aware of it, but until the

order was released he was not certain he could conment in depth
on it. He said that [the departnent] is currently working on it

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 30, 2003



in regard to personnel rules and to contracts wth various
bar gai ni ng units.

COM SSIONER ANTRIM  in response to a question by Chair
Weyhrauch, concurred that he did not have control over the
rel ease date.

Nunmber 2526

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted a provision [in paragraph five of
Adm nistrative Oder 207, included in the conmttee packet],
which he read as follows: "The inmate health care unit is
transferred fromthe division of institutions to the division of
adm ni strative services. The director of adm ni strative

services is responsible for undertaking cost containnment
measures for the delivery of inmate health care.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG quoted a section of the acconpanying
press release [included in the comrmttee packet] as follows:
"The inmate care wunit has been nmoved to the D vision of
Adm ni strative Services, where the director can work closely
with the nedical director and other state agencies to maintain
quality health <care for Alaska's inmate population, while
undertaking a variety of cost-contai nment neasures.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG al so recollected having read an article
- in either an Anchorage or a Juneau newspaper - that reported
that 30 percent of hepatitis B cases and a |arge nunber of
tuberculosis (TB) and human i mrunodeficiency virus (HV) cases
have emanated from recently rel eased prisoners. He stated that
there is sonme concern nationally as to the level of health care
that prisoners are receiving, and the effect that that |ack of
health care is having on the spread of these very serious
communi cabl e di seases.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked Conmi ssioner Antrim what steps
the departnment would take under the current admnistration to
ensure that the desire to contain costs does not outweigh inmte
safety and the public safety in this area.

Number 2633
COW SSI ONER ANTRIM responded that all of [Alaska's] prisoners

undergo a cursory nedical exam He explained that this is a
means of controlling the aforenentioned di seases.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- January 30, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "Are they all given tests for
t uber cul osi s?"

COMM SSI ONER ANTRI M sai d yes.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG al so asked about hepatitis B and HI V.

COWM SSI ONER ANTRI M responded as fol | ows: "Al'l blood is drawn.
Everybody has to get a TB test. |If they refuse the TB test, for
exanpl e, we put them in what' s cal |l ed adm ni strative
segregation.”

Number 2680

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM nentioned the guard-to-prisoner ratio. He
asked if his recollection was true that there are a significant
anount of guard and probation officer staff positions open.

COWM SSI ONER ANTRI M answered that [the departnment] is diligently
working to "whittle that down as we can wth our budget
constraints.” He said that part of [the departnment’'s] goal is
to "free up sone dollars” in mddle managenent and [to use] that
noney to fill [those positions].

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked Commi ssioner Antrim if he thought he
woul d be able to find efficiencies in admnistration to do that.

COWM SSI ONER ANTRI M answer ed yes.
Number 2729

CHAIR VEYHRAUCH referred to an earlier statenent by Comm ssioner
Antrimregarding i nmate deaths that were arguably avoidable. He
asked the comm ssioner to confirm for the record that "that
wasn't any position by the departnent, that's just a concern
that you raised.”

COMWM SSI ONER ANTRIM said yes. In response to a followup
guestion by Chair Wyhrauch, he confirmed that [his previous
statenent] was in no way an adm ssion of liability.

Number 2760
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG requested that Comm ssioner Antrim

continue with his previous response regarding [health screening
of prisoners].

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- January 30, 2003



COM SSI ONER ANTRIM said that if any of the prisoners screened
are found to have any of the aforenentioned diseases, treatnent
is initiated inmediately. He stated that he was not famliar
with the article Representative Guenberg had previously
referred to, but said that the statistics were very al arm ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if anyone else had seen that
article.

AN UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER sai d he had seen it.

COW SSI ONER ANTRIM said he would like the chance to read the
article before he comments on it.

Nunmber 2805

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked, before the admnistrative order
cane out, whether there was any discussion with the unions or
with the superintendent at the correctional facility about this
I ssue.

COW SS|I ONER ANTRI M answer ed no.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if Conmmi ssioner Antrim foresees any
| ayof fs of superintendents because of the admi nistrative order.

COMWM SSIONER  ANTRIM  responded no. He said that t he
adm nistrative order affects a limted nunber of superintendent
positions; it doesn't affect the superintendents as a group. He
explained, "This is really round two of sone econon zing that
was done several years ago." He estimated that 10 or 12 years
ago, al | of the facilities had assistant superintendent
positi ons when managenent deternmined to consolidate sone of the
duties and elimnate sonme of those [positions] in the smaller
facilities.

Nunber 2878

COM SSIONER ANTRIM said [the departnent] is continuing that
process of consolidation. He noted that there have been sone
changes in [the department's] job classes. He told the House
State Affairs Standing Committee that some of the current
assi stant superintendent duties will be noved "in sone of the
facilities that are affected” to an "SU' position that has been
i ntroduced. He added, "In many cases, the affected assistant

superintendents will nove into those positions that are vacant."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 30, 2003



Nunber 2891

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the vacancies in correctional
officer positions are a result of not being able to find staff
for those positions, or because of insufficient funding.

Nunber 2934
COM SSI ONER ANTRIM answered that there were approxinmately 88
correctional of ficer positions and 16 probation officer

positions open "at the tinme of transition.”

TAPE 03-02, SIDE B

Nunber 2972

COMWM SSI ONER ANTRIM said that [the departnment] is experiencing
recruiting difficulties. He added, "It's just tough to find
decent people.” A large nunber of people apply; however, the
background checks elimnate a |ot of people. He stated that
[the departnent] is responsible for placing people in control of
people's lives in a way that could have sone very serious

consequences; therefore, he rationalized that he believes that
[the departnent] is correct in making certain that only the best
and nost trustworthy people are placed in those positions.

Nunmber 2876

COWM SSI ONER ANTRIM said that he is filling the vacancies as the
budget al |l ows. [ The departnent] is examning its hiring
process, he said. He noted that there has been difficulty in
attracting Al aska Natives and females to fill the job vacanci es.
Number 2849

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said that he and Representative Kapsner
have discussed a proposal that has existed for "quite sone
time," which would expand the responsibilities of VPSGs [Vill age
Public Safety Oficers] to include sone probation or parole
activities. He said it would help with "the rehabilitation” and
the VPSOs' conpensation packages. He asked Comm ssioner Antrim

if he would be willing to assist in that pursuit.

Number 2825

COMM SSI ONER ANTRIM replied that he agreed that it is inportant
to "get people back to ... where they live, particularly in our
renote |ocations around the state.” Currently, a staff person

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 30, 2003



is working wth the VPSGs regarding nonitoring and neeting
probation and parole conditions, he said. In response to a
comment by Representative Berkowitz, he agreed that it is cost-
effective to "nonitor themin place.”

Nunber 2778

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM nentioned an inmates-to-staff ratio found in
the Corrections Yearbook, dated January 1, 2001, which he said
is the second best ratio in the country. He suggested that
perhaps there shouldn't be a big hurry to change those ratios at
this point; therefore, he commended Commi ssioner Antrim for his
care in [choosing] officers.

Nunber 2720

COWM SSI ONER ANTRI M conmented that the officer safety statistics
are as inpressive as the statistics showing |ow prisoner
violence. He stated that that is "another mechani sm of adequate
staffing and just good training on the part of our enployees."

Number 2700

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER stated her understanding that [the
departnment] is enbarking on a chaplaincy program She asked if
the chaplains wll be on the state payroll and if [the
departnment] would be sensitive to recruiting chaplains of other
faiths besides Christianity.

Nunmber 2666

COM SSI ONER ANTRIM answered that [the departnent] has had a
chaplaincy program for a long time, and he said that certain
statistics indicate that faith-based prograns are probably sone
of the nost effective. He explained that the chaplain serves as
a coordinator who nmkes certain that the space available for
chapl aincy services is shared equally anong all the different

faiths. There are currently several paid chaplains; Chaplain
M ke Ensch, based in Anchorage, Alaska, is the statew de
coordi nator. He noted that Chaplain Ensch has submtted a

proposal to the commssioner's office that would expand the
program and introduce a nunber of paid chaplains throughout the
system

COM SSI ONER ANTRIM said that he supports the concept [of the

proposal], but pointed out that it is a matter of finding the
noney to do it. He stated that the cost of placing noderately

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- January 30, 2003



paid chaplains in all [the correctional] facilities would be
approxi mately $500, 000. He stated that the intent of the
departnment is to consider a variety of funding sources -
including the "faith-based initiatives that are very big right
now," as well as individual church groups - and to attenpt to
mat ch those funds sonehow with state funds.

COMWM SSIONER ANTRIM responding to Representative Kapsnher's
question regarding individual faiths, stated that the Jew sh and
Muslim faiths are well represented in the prison population. He
said that part of Chaplain Ensch's proposal is to provide
chapels in each of the facilities, many of which don't currently
have dedi cat ed chapel s.

Nunber 2489

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to Conmm ssioner Antrims
statenent during the [Departnment of Corrections] overview [House
State Affairs Standing Conmttee, January 23, 2003], regarding
enpl oyi ng "best correctional practices throughout the operations
of the departnent.” He said that he believes three of the
[correctional] institutions have net the accreditation standards
set by the Anmerican Correctional Association (ACA). He asked
Comm ssioner Antrim if he was planning to continue working to
bring the other institutions towards accreditation, as well.

Nunmber 2454

COM SSIONER ANTRIM replied that that's a program that [the
depart nment ] nmust take a |ook at. He said that the
superint endent s of t he facilities [ t hat under went t he
accreditation] will [attest] that that was a very intensive and

expensive process. The value of [the accreditation] is that it
establishes a set of standards and conditions for the prisoners,
and guarantees that the staff will review the policy procedures
and denonstrate "know edge. "

COM SSI ONER ANTRIM said that [the departnent] nust determ ne
whet her the certification process is "worth it,” or whether it
can conme close to sonething like that on its own for |ess noney.
He offered the exanple of the Ketchikan facility spending a
great anount of noney to provide a cell wth handicap access.
In response to a question from Representative G uenberg,
Comm ssioner Antrim explained that there was no one who required
a handicap cell at the prison at that tinme; the renodeling was
part of the certification process. He noted that the Lenon
Creek facility has several nmassive dormtory areas, none of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 30, 2003



which wll neet ACA accreditation. He said he thinks the
approach that [the departnment] will end up taking is to try to
get as close to [ACA standards] as it can. Conmi ssioner Antrim
characterized ACA standards as "wi dely avail able.™

Nunmber 2353

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if nost [ correctional]
institutions in the United States neet [the ACA] standards.

COW SS|I ONER ANTRI M answer ed no.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if there is any penalty for not
neeting the standards, for exanple, being ineligible [to
recei ve] federal funds.

COWM SSI ONER ANTRI M responded no. He said that he guesses the
bi gger question is what the benefit is. Whet her [ bei ng
accredited] would help avoid lawsuits is debatable, although it
is sonmething to point to in the case of a lawsuit, he noted. He
concluded, "It basically is ... a set of best practices
conditions.™

Number 2261

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH referred to Conm ssioner Antrim s aforenentioned
statenent that he had no intention of ending any existing
program He stated his concern that Conm ssioner Antrim not box
hinself into sonme position. If the facts don't warrant
continuing a program he said, and there is no public policy
base for it and no benefit [fromit], then perhaps that program
shoul d be ended. He said that he did not want that statenent to
conme back and haunt Conmi ssioner Antrim

Nunber 2242

COM SSI ONER ANTRIM clarified that what he had neant to say is
that individual prograns may be exam ned, but "broad areas, |ike
substance abuse, we are going to offer always, whether the
i ndi vidual delivery nethod stays the sane."

Number 2201
REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ stated that he had a question regarding

"the program" He asked, "I was wondering if they were going to
go through the sane auditing that all the other prograns are

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- January 30, 2003



goi ng through." He asked if those audits would be nade
avai |l abl e.

Nunber 2190

COWM SSI ONER ANTRI M answered yes. He said, "The governor, in
general concept, has ordered top-to-bottom audits of all the
departnments.” He asked Representative Berkowitz if his question
referred to faith-based prograns.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said that he wants to ensure that if
one programis audited, they all will be audited.

COWM SSI ONER ANTRI M said yes. He clarified, "At this point the
chaplaincy programis sinply a proposal, so once it's in play,
you bet it will be.”

Nunber 2154

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked Commi ssioner Antrim if his departnment had
any involvenent in any honel and security issue affecting Al aska.

COWM SSI ONER ANTRI M answered that although [the departnent] has
not yet been part of any discussion [concerning honeland

security], he believes that it has a "place at the table.” In
response to a followup question by Chair Wyhrauch, he opined
that his departnment should be [involved] in any upcom ng

honel and security overvi ews.
Number 2115

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated his understanding that, at one
time, the departnment was involved in seeking a federal grant for
sex offender treatnent. He asked Comm ssioner Antrim to
describe that grant and explain why the new admnistration
deci ded not to continue it.

COM SSIONER ANTRIM clarified that that grant was part of a
| arger federal grant called the "going honme project.” He said,
"We've not nmde a decision yet whether to end either one of
those two grants.” He explained that [the departnment’'s] concern
is regarding the ambunt of work that would be required of the
staff to admnister those grants. He said that initial
i ndi cations were that sone of the senior probation staff would
be consunmed in managing the program He nentioned the new
admnistration and an initial [reaction] to "cut our |osses" by
cutting the program He told the <conmttee that [the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- January 30, 2003



departnent] had engaged in an in-depth conversation with "the
main admnistrator in the field for that grant, yesterday
afternoon,” and it appears that [the departnent] may be able to
shift sone of the workload to "sone of his people"” and nmake the
changes in the operation of the grants through addenduns that

will neet "our very point of concerns.” Comm ssioner Antrim
said that, if that proves possible, [the departnent] wll

continue [with the grant].

Number 1920
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Comm ssioner Antrim if he thinks

he may have the ability to change sone of the conditions of the
grant.

COMWM SSI ONER ANTRIM said yes. In response to an offer of
assistance from Representative Guenberg, he said, "I think
we're K"

Nunber 1877

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if the admnistration had any
t houghts regardi ng changing the m ssions and neasures set out by
the | egislature.

COM SSIONER ANTRIM  replied that it was cl ear during
conversations with OMB [OFfice of Managenent & Budget] that sone
of the m ssions and neasures are "out of sync." He said, "So,
|"ve tasked the director of [the D vision of] Institutions and
the director of what we're going to call the new Division of
Probation and Parole to examne those and tighten them up a
little bit, so they have nore neaning for the |egislature.”

Nunber 1824

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked Commi ssioner Antrim why the |legislature
shoul d accept his confirmation.

COWM SSI ONER ANTRIM responded that he has given his "entire
adult life" to the departnment. He stated that he feels strongly
about |eaving the departnent better than when he [began working
for it]. He said that he believes his approach thus far has
been a cautious and safe one. He has assenbled a team that he
said he thinks offers "a very good, strong, balanced approach to
get the job done."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 30, 2003



CHAIR WEYHRAUCH asked Conm ssioner Antrim to describe his
strengt hs and weaknesses.

COM SSI ONER  ANTRIM  answered that his strength is being
"extrenmely dogged,” and his weakness is that he sonetines
doesn't know when to quit when he shoul d. He stated his hope
that that would not be a detrinment in commttee hearings, for
exanpl e.

COM SSI ONER ANTRIM in response to a question by Representative
Weyhrauch regarding favorite reading, noted that he had read Man
In Full: A Novel, by Tom Wl fe; however, he noted that nost of
the prison literature that he has read over the years has
consi sted of professional publications.

Nunmber 1699

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked Comm ssioner Antrim to confirm that
he m ght be changing the focus of treatnents from "treating all
the inmtes who nmay have a problem in one area, whether they
admt it or not, to just treating the inmates that admt that
t hey have a problem say, with al cohol addiction.™

COM SSI ONER ANTRIM clarified that his focus is getting people
to understand that they have a problem that needs to be treated.
In response to a coment by Representative Kapsner, he agreed
that [many of those with alcohol abuse problens] won't freely
admt to their problem He stated that once people realize that
they need help, there are a nunber of treatnent nodels that are
effective, and he reenphasized his intent to help those people
with problens [in taking that first step].

Number 1502

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH reviewed the steps involved in a confirmation
and t hanked Conmi ssioner Antrim

[ Al though there was no formal notion, the confirmation of
Conmi ssi oner Mar c Antrim was treated as advanced from
comm ttee.]
Number 1401

[ Representative Guenberg handed out the previously nentioned
article regarding the health issues of prison inmates.]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 30, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN mentioned that he had read an article from
an Anchorage newspaper about sonmeone in Anchorage who started
his/her car with a renote starter, left it unattended, and was
given a ticket. He noted that he has a renote starter, and he
guessed that between 5 to 15 percent of people [in Alaska] use
renote starters. He confessed that his vehicle was one of four
| eft unattended [in Juneau] on a recent night. He stated that
he thinks the issue needs to be addressed.

ADJ OQURNVENT
Number 1290
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 9:21
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 30, 2003



